SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

GOLDEN CRAB COMMITTEE

Sea Palms Resort and Conference Center St. Simons Island, GA

March 8, 2011

SUMMARY MINUTES

SOPPs Committee

Duane Harris, Chair David Cupka, Vice-Chair

Dr. Brian Cheuvront George Geiger

Doug Haymans

Council Members

Robert Boyles Tom Burgess
Dr. Roy Crabtree Mac Currin

Ben Hartig LTJG Matthew Lam

Dr. Wilson Laney Vince O'Shea Charlie Phillips Mark Robson

Tom Swatzel

Council Staff:

Bob Mahood Gregg Waugh John Carmichael Mike Collins

Dr. Mike Errigo Dr. Kari MacLauchlin

Anna Martin Kate Quigley
Andrea Grabman Kim Iverson

Julie O'Dell

Observers/Participants:

Dr. Bonnie Ponwith Monica Smit-Brunello

Jessica McCawley Bob Gill

Lt. Brandon Fisher Dr. Jack McGovern

The SOPPs Committee of the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council convened in the Sea Palms Resort and Conference Center, St. Simons Island, Georgia, March 8, 2011, and was called to order at 1:00 o'clock p.m. by Chairman Duane Harris.

MR. HARRIS: The first item on the SOPPs Committee agenda is approval of the agenda. Is there any objection to approving the agenda as it's written? Seeing none, the agenda is approved. The second item is approval of the minutes of the December 2010 SOPPs Committee meeting.

That was about the longest SOPPs Committee meeting we've had in a long time; 7 minutes long. Are there any additions or deletions or changes to those minutes? Seeing none, those minutes are approved. I'm going to call on Bob and Mike to lead us through what we have before us today. It's approval of new SOPPs for the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council; the first time in how many years, Bob?

MR. MAHOOD: I think it was in '96 the last time we actually got anything through the system.

MR. HARRIS: So this is an exciting day for us, so I just want you to keep that in mind as we go through these.

MR. MAHOOD: The first attachments are the background material, which consists of the final rule, the model SOPPs, and the model SOPPs is actually the North Pacific Fishery Management Council SOPPs. Also for background, there is a copy of our SOPPs that is approved by the council for 2004 with additional pieces here and there that we've added on.

And then the last item is the major document that Mike worked on, and that is the Draft SOPPs that we would be sending to the Secretary of Commerce. Now, the intent here today is to go through that and make any changes you'd like to make, any modifications. We'll tell you what input we've had into it. Then the next step is at the CCC meeting in May all of the councils are going to bring their approved SOPPs by their council and go through and make sure we're on the same page.

Then after that what we would like to do, since we reference our Administrative Handbook, our SSC Policy and our AP Policy as part of the SOPPs but we reference it, we would then plan on going over those three documents in June to kind of finalize the total package. If that's okay, Mr. Chairman, that's the plan.

MR. HARRIS: Whatever you want to do.

MR. MAHOOD: And then also in June if we come back and some of the councils decided, no, we don't want to include this or we need to put this or type of thing, we can make those additions. This won't be an approval for submission I guess is what I'm saying.

MR. HARRIS: This is just a preliminary approval.

MR. MAHOOD: Right. And with that I guess if you look at Attachment 3B, that's the document we'll be going through. We had these on the agenda the last time, the model SOPPs and the final rule. Unless somebody wanted to talk about those, Mr. Chairman, we'll go right to what Mike and I have been working on.

MR. HARRIS: Is that okay with the committee; I think it probably is. Proceed.

MR. COLLINS: Basically, the philosophy I used when I started working with this was to take the model SOPPs we got from Bill Chapel's office, pull out the things that were unique to the North Pacific, make sure that everything that was in the final rule was implemented into the draft; and anything that I added that wasn't final rule oriented, I put in the color of blue.

I had a bunch of questions for Bob. We went through those. They were in red; there are still a few things in red, particularly one that a council member has brought up for discussion. That's basically how I put it together.

MR. MAHOOD: One additional thing, most of the working between the model SOPPs and our SOPPs was exactly the same because initially they had all come from the same documents or the same guidance. Where we have varied from the model SOPPs, we went ahead and included our language we liked better than what was in the model SOPPs. Although it talks about the same things, some things are a little bit different. When we get to that, we'll tell you what that is.

MR. HARRIS: Do you just want to go through it one page at a time and see if there are any comments or questions?

MR. MAHOOD: I don't know; I suspect with all the material that is dumped on everybody, I don't think they probably had the time to go in detail through the SOPPs. Most of it nothing changes. There wasn't a whole lot in the final rule that changed our SOPPs whatsoever, but the model SOPPs had a little more detail, which is fine. It doesn't infringe on our ability to make changes to our Administrative Handbook.

One thing, as we go through, you'll see we reference the Administrative Handbook a lot. The thought is that I think we'll be fortunate if the SOPPs ever really get approved just from past history. Now, I'm not being down on NOAA General Council; I'm not being down on NMFS, it just turns out there is never time. There are so much more pressing issues.

The timeline now – when you ask when they'd like to get they them, they say sometime between now and the end of the year; the sooner, whatever. We certainly will get ours well before the end of the year, but we don't want to put things in the SOPPS, that if they do go through approval process, that would then necessarily have to be changed relative to our day-to-day operations. That is where we have those types of things in the Administrative Handbook.

The thought is amongst the councils is that is where we will be able to alter things as a council as opposed to going through the whole process, because the process that is outlined in the rule is pretty convoluted and pretty time-consuming. Anyway, with that, Mike, do want to go ahead and start.

MR. COLLINS: On Page 4 of the PDF, basically it just covered specific information as to our identity, how to get in touch with us, that type of thing. Again, the items that are in the black came from the model. The next page, again I added some things that were specific to the South Atlantic under Paragraph 2.0. The next page, again just filling in blanks specifying specifics as the southeast director, that type of thing.

DR. LANEY: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman, I'm not on your committee, but, Mike, it would clarify things a tiny bit if under Item 1 under non-voting members, if you just add the word "regional" in between "southeast" and "director" there.

MR. MAHOOD: That's the other thing as we go through this, I don't think we need to vote on anything if people reach consensus. If they don't reach consensus, then you might, at your discretion, Mr. Chairman, have a vote. We'll be glad to include any changes.

MR. HARRIS: No, if somebody makes a suggestion and there is no objection to it, we'll just accept it as if it were by consensus.

MR. COLLINS: Okay, I've added that, Wilson, thank you. The next page, there is a question here in red dealing with if we wanted to specify the maximum number of terms.

MR. HARRIS: What is the pleasure of the committee?

MR. MAHOOD: Historically, as you recall, we've never really had a term limit. Anyway, it used to be one term as the chairmanship. Then once we got into the CCC operation where we were interacting with the other councils, very often I came back and recommended that the chairman at least serve two years.

I was taking a chairman every year to a meeting where he didn't have any concept of what had been going on. The way we have it now is informal and there is nothing in black and white about it, but we informally moved to where our vice-chairman serves two years, the chairman serves two years, and then assuming the vice-chairman is reappointed he then – let's put it this way, I don't remember the last time.

The software that I had my ballot on probably wouldn't even open on my computer, it has been that long. That's pretty much how we've operated. I don't know that we need – there is no requirement to have a set number.

MR. HARRIS: I'm satisfied with it as it is, but I'll entertain any other comments with respect to this issue. Seeing none, let's on.

MR. MAHOOD: We can strike that, Mike.

MR. COLLINS: Okay, moving on, again we have in the green the specific wording that was in the final rule, and we refer at the end of that specific details directing people to the Administrative Handbook so that we have some flexibility to make quick changes. At the top of the page, again language in the rule.

MR. HAYMANS: I have a question regarding advisory panels. Is it in code or it states the period with which advisory panels are selected? Regarding advisory panels, it is code that stipulates the period that they are selected? Currently we go in June right. It's not here in SOPPs?

MR. MAHOOD: Yes, it's in our Advisory Panel Policy that you don't have in here right now. We'll work on that at the June meeting.

MR. COLLINS: I think that's where we refer in Paragraph 2.6.1 to the Advisory Panel Handbook. Again, this is just going down the line, either formal rule language or in the blue what we've put in here. Okay, we've got Page 11 of the PDF – and I don't remember exactly what the question was on that, Bob, procedure for proposed regulations.

MR. CUPKA: I can wait or we can go back now, but I had question on Page 9.

MR. HARRIS: Let's go back.

MR. CUPKA: This deals with the Council Coordination Committee. The second sentence there, it says, "The chairs, vice-chairs and executive director shall be voting members." Last year the CCC – as you recall, it was formally organized when the Magnuson was reauthorized this last time, but at our last CCC meeting we adopted operating procedures which said that we would normally operate by consensus, but if someone wanted to make a motion or required a vote, that we would vote, but each council would have one vote, and that would be the council chairman.

Now, obviously, all three of us would get together before just like they do at ASMFC and see how we wanted to vote; but I guess depending on how you read this, it may or may not be consistent with what the CCC has adopted as its operating procedures. I've asked Monica about that, but I don't know if it's worth worrying about or not.

You could read it – if you just read it that way, you might get the impression each council has got three votes, which according to our procedures we don't. I guess you could consider that any one of those three individuals could vote. For example, if the chairman wasn't there or stepped out or something, the vice-chair could vote on behalf of the council. It's a little bit unclear I think, a little bit of discrepancy there.

MR. COLLINS: Okay, I've highlighted that and we can clean up some of the language.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Well, David, I think you'd have to read it in conjunction with the way that the CCC runs itself; so I think that when you read those two provisions together, three of those people from the council can vote, but it is going to be one who does the vote. I guess we could clean it up a little bit and make it a little more specific to that.

MR. MAHOOD: Yes, I think maybe it will have to be cleaned up at the CCC end because this is language right out of the rule, I believe, wasn't it?

MR. COLLINS: This is language that we put in.

MR. HARRIS: Yes, it seems to me, Bob, that sentence can just be rewritten to make it consistent with what the CCC has already adopted, and then I think we're okay. Does that suit you, David?

MR. CUPKA: Yes, that's fine; I just think it would be better to clarify it, but again I don't think this came from the Act. I think this was recommended, this model wording, but we can clean that up.

MR. MAHOOD: Yes, and we can just put a sentence to say something like "as per CCC operational procedures there may be a quorum, one vote from a" – well, whatever it is, we need to get together – caucus.

MR. HARRIS: Let Mike figure it out.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: And that's probably a good idea, David. I'm glad you caught that because these will eventually be put on the website; so if the members of the public see them, it should be real clear as to how that voting works.

MR. MAHOOD: Okay, I looked at that in red and the reason I have that as a question is I had put together a number of pieces to meet the mandate of the rule, and this has to do with deeming process. We say our proposed regulations are developed either by a contractor or by the Southeast Regional Office staff working in conjunction with the council staff' and that is unique to some of the operations although we don't have a person right at this point in time.

But then the part I had a question about, it says, "In the event this is not possible or if additional minor modifications must be made to the proposed rule, the council has given the chairman authority to deem the proposed regulations as necessary and appropriate." That gives the authority to the chairman right here as opposed to we were doing it on kind of a piece-by-piece basis and actually voting to do that. This gives him that authority in the SOPPs to do that. I just wanted to make sure that was okay with everybody.

MR. HARRIS: It's okay with me; I defer to Monica as to whether it will satisfy – whether we're still going to have to deem it on each and every plan or plan amendment. Monica.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Well, sure, you're going to have to deem the regulations as they come up along with the amendment. The only thing that has me a little concerned is in the event this is not possible, and that refers to the council approving the regulation at the time they approve the plan or amendment.

I have no problems with if additional minor modifications must be made to the proposed rule, the council has given the chairman the authority, but I'm not sure that the council can delegate to the chairman approval of the regulations if the council has never voted on them. That said, let's leave it like it is and I'll try to get you my final recommendation by the time the council meets this week.

MR. MAHOOD: Yes, before it hasn't been a problem because we've always had the rule with the final document; but now that we don't have Perry Allen, I'm not sure if we'll be working with the region. They have a number of councils that they have to administer to with writing the rule. Hopefully, we'll be able to still coordinate that and get it worked out.

MR. CUPKA: And that's what we did here recently I think with our regulatory amendment.

MR. MAHOOD: Yes, the most recent one – the difference is we've been voting at each meeting to give the chairman that authority, and this just gives him – it says this is the authority he has. It just saves one action at each meeting.

MR. HARRIS: Well, I'm not so sure because that was the question I just asked Monica and she said we would have to do that for each action. Monica.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Well, what I meant – and I have been more clear – you're going to vote on the proposed regulations. The council is going to have to deem them at each meeting, and that's what I meant. But this language, if this gets approved, then this would take care of the whole delegation business, so you would not have to say at each council meeting, when you vote on the regulations, that we give the chairman the authority. This would take care of that.

MR. HARRIS: Okay, thank you, I needed that clarification.

MR. COLLINS: Okay, as we continue you'll see language in blue on the next page that came from the model SOPPs and then below that you'll see Tom Swatzel's request as to some substitute language. I'll open this up to Tom.

MR. SWATZEL: I think the language in blue is actually from our existing SOPPs.

MR. MAHOOD: Correct.

MR. SWATZEL: Okay, I was just simply – and I'm not a member of the committee, but just simply asking the council and this committee to consider adopting the language from the model SOPPs and deleting the language from our current SOPPs. I think that language is unduly burdensome in terms of requiring a minority report to be declared within three days and then having to follow that up with a report within 30 days, particularly if the submission to the secretary you may take much longer than that. So just out of fairness, just asking that we adopt the language from the model SOPPs concerning minority reports.

MR. CUPKA: Mr. Chairman, I don't have a problem with the three-day thing or the thirty days. I think the key, though, was that the minority report has to be ready to be submitted when the council documents go in. What I don't want to see happen is – if that's everyone's understanding, but maybe it needs to be spelled out – I don't want to see a situation where action is held hostage to waiting for a minority report to be completed; as long as we understand that the amount of time that they have available to do a minority report depends on when the paperwork is going to be submitted from the council, but they both should be submitted at the same time, I believe.

MR. HARRIS: David, I agree. That was my concern when I first read this is that I could envision a situation where a minority would use this to hold a plan or a plan amendment hostage and keep it from being submitted in a timely fashion. As long as that's not the case, I'm fine with going with the model SOPPs.

MR. MAHOOD: Okay, the model SOPPs language is the first paragraph under Tom's name, and we will remove your name from it. Is that what everybody wants to leave in, that first paragraph and delete what we have in the blue? Okay.

MR. COLLINS: Okay, continuing on basically you will find specific rule language in green and then filling in certain things that were unique to the South Atlantic.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: If we could just real quick go back to Tom Swatzel's request, that language, how did you all decide you were going to handle the submission of the minority report? What was the consensus? If the minority report is not ready at the time the majority report, if you will, is going to submitted, the majority report gets submitted anyway? I just kind of wondered because of the whole hold hostage idea. I know right now with all these council members you have an idea of how that is going to be handled, but new council members can come along, and so I'm just kind of curious as to what you finally decided on that.

MR. MAHOOD: This came out of the North Pacific's Model SOPPs, and I called Chris Oliver and asked that specific question, who sets the timeframe for the minority report being done. He said it has got to be done at the same time the action is going in or it doesn't get submitted. They have to meet the deadlines for the major action being submitted to the secretary.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: So you, though, as the executive director need to know – if you're not going to know within three days that there is a minority report – and that's fine. I agree, that's a pretty quick time period. But, you're going to have to know that there is a minority report that is being developed out there so that you know that it should be included, and you can communicate with that council member saying, "I'm giving you a yellow flag here that you've got one week to finish this because we think we're going to submit it in a week." There has got to be that kind of back and forth, I would imagine.

MR. MAHOOD: Right, and I think the last case of a minority report, it was actually more than three days had gone by when it was decided, and that certainly doesn't preclude people from doing it. But, you're right, we need to know. What we try and do is you recall at each meeting as we take the final vote, we try to give the council some idea when that will be submitted. Again, that has to be the driving force. You can't hold it hostage by holding off on your minority report.

MR. HARRIS: Well, let me ask another question. Monica, think about this situation; if, for example, a minority does not inform the council that it is going to submit a minority report and the council is preparing and moving forward and submits the plan or plan amendment, there is nothing that precludes a minority from submitting a minority report following that time. It's just not going in with the plan or plan amendment, right?

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: That's right.

MR. CUPKA: Yes, but the people up the line that review this, they have to have a complete record. I mean, if they make a decision on something and then a minority report comes in, it just seems to me it's not fair to the people in the NOAA who are reviewing these things for approval.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Well, I think you'd almost treat it like a comment, like how you publish the proposed rule and the amendment, you almost have to treat it along the same lines as if this is a comment. It carries some weight because it's from council members, of course, but I'm not sure how you would deal with it any other way. You're right, the decision-maker needs to have all the information in front of him. I would argue you treat it like a comment.

MR. HARRIS: Okay, any further comments on that issue? Let's move along.

MR. MAHOOD: The question I had, Mike, was on 3.2.7, consideration of information. That came out of our SOPPs, right? Okay.

MR. COLLINS: That's correct; 3.2.7 came from our original SOPPs. I sent out a new Page 14 to you last week. I missed a line when we did this.

MR. MAHOOD: What about 3.4, closed meetings, anybody have any questions about those? That's language straight out of the final rule.

MR. BOYLES: Mr. Chairman, I'm not on your committee. At the top of Page 13, "Without the notice required above, the council, SSC, AP or other committees may briefly close a portion of a meeting to discuss employment," which I understand, "or other internal administrative matters." Bob, can you clarify what an "other internal administrative matter" is?

MR. MAHOOD: Appointment of AP members, SSC members; that's two examples; if had a personnel file a grievance or something like that.

MR. HARRIS: And that's straight out of the model SOPPs.

MR. COLLINS: Actually the green is straight out of the rule.

MR. HARRIS: I mean the rule.

MR. COLLINS: Okay, just keep rolling through; again, when we get down into this part, we're talking a lot about administrative personnel decisions and procedures so we refer to the Administrative Handbook again so that we have the flexibility to make quick changes. We did notice something in the final rule that was a bit strange, but it's there, is SSC applications; they have to fill out a financial disclosure 45 days before being appointed now. I got with John and we're just going to include a financial disclosure in the package for SSC applications and fix it that way. That's on Page 19 of the document.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Mike, I think it's a good idea when you do that – I think it's a great idea to include that financial disclosure form, but you might want to put on there that is not like the – somehow that it's not like the council's financial disclosure in that it doesn't go on the

SOPPs Committee St. Simons Island, GA March 8, 2011

council's website and it's kept NMFS, I guess, the Fishery Service, but it's not distributed to the public necessarily. I don't want that to dissuade them from applying to be on the SSC.

MR. COLLINS: Okay. Basically, again it's just kind of internal procedures, of course, dictated by the government on accounting procedures and that type of thing as we finish up audits and financial reporting. We add at the end – we weren't sure where to put it other than at the end about habitat concerns and how the council can weigh in on actions from other agencies that they have a concern about.

MR. MAHOOD: And that was included in our original SOPPs.

MR. HARRIS: Yes, and it has been standard operating procedure for years.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Way back on 5.0, standards of conduct for council members, staff and SSC members, I will give you the website, if you don't have it, that links to the Department of Commerce Ethics Division and they have those right online that you can look at online. If you want to put that link in here, I'll make sure you get it.

MR. HARRIS: This is under 5.0?

MR. HARRIS: Yes.

MR. COLLINS: Page 18 of the PDF.

MR. HARRIS: Yes, I think it would be helpful to do.

MR. MAHOOD: What was the website reference?

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: The Standards of Conduct for council members, staff and members; it says please see rules of conduct under both of those, either for employees or for council members, but it doesn't say where you can get those rules of conduct. You could put the link in that links right to the Department of Commerce Ethics – David Maggi's shop. He has got an ethics division there where they have those right online. Council members can view them online, the public can view them via the internet. It might be handy to have a citation to where you can find those.

MR. HARRIS: I think that's a good suggestion and we'll do that.

MR. MAHOOD: Yes, that is a good idea, but what we were thinking of is the booklet that comes out annually, but the public wouldn't really know that, I guess.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: Right, and that booklet is also online; it's the same thing.

MR. HARRIS: Okay, we're at the end; are there any other comments or questions with respect to these new SOPPs? Bob or Mike, anything else we need to do today? Ben.

MR. HARTIG: I've got a question about where in the council/committees would we discuss how we do our business at public hearings? I'd like to see the council at some future meeting sit down and discuss the way public hearings are being conducted. Myself, personally, I have some problems with the way we're doing business and I've talked it over with some other people. Where we would do that, Bob, where we could possibly do that?

MR. MAHOOD: Well, we'll be talking about the Administrative Handbook which tends to get into more detail. At the June meeting we certainly can make that one of the items that we look at. Are you talking about having the three o'clock to seven o'clock, five rooms with fourteen different actions, that type of thing, or are you talking about just in an individual hearing and calling on people?

MR. HARTIG: Yes, exactly, the way we deal with the public at a hearing and also to change the hours of the hearing, possibly, where council members could interact with the public in those rooms prior to when we take public comment. I think that would go a long way. I've seen that as a real problem. Possibly we could get some of the questions that they ask at the podium answered in those meeting rooms.

MR. MAHOOD: They are answered in the meeting rooms, Ben.

MR. HARTIG: No, I know, but I mean as a council member coming into that thing, immediately I have to go into the room just taking comment. I would like to be more involved, talking with staff, one on one on fishermen and fishermen's groups about the different things we're trying to do and why we're doing them. Different people have different viewpoints and I think it would be constructive.

MR. MAHOOD: I got an earful from Chairman Cupka about that. It never occurred to me because I was going from room to room and heard what was going on. I get done with the meeting and all David has heard are the people that are actually doing the standard, you know, we can't talk to you, testify type meeting, and he missed out on a lot of the stuff that was going on and talking to the fishermen.

We've talked about that and we're going to look at several different options in that process. We may not start the actual testimony two hours after we start the four-hour session. Maybe that would also encourage people to go talk to somebody in a room that could maybe explain what is going before they get in there to testify. But in many cases, as you well know, that doesn't make a bit of difference.

MR. PHILLIPS: Mr. Chairman, I'm not on your committee but I remember going to NEPA training down in St. Pete I guess a year ago or something, and they had somebody come in and she brought in and showed some methodology of bringing a lot of people in that had different issues and ideas, and they moved in between groups and they gave them items, and they said come up with answers; don't just, you know – and mingle and talk.

I thought it was very interesting and very constructive of how you could get people that came from all these different stakeholder views to work together and try to get them to work together instead of what we normally get is just getting blasted. And when we can get these different stakeholders and maybe work out some methodology where we can do some workshops somehow, I think it might be very helpful to us and the public.

MR. MAHOOD: You're talking about like a facilitated meeting where you try to reach consensus. The problem we have, as you know, Charlie, is nobody is going to want to do what we have to do, and so that makes it hard to reach any kind of consensus at a facilitated meeting.

MR. HARRIS: I think one of the best ideas I've heard is that we don't start the public testimony for a couple hours following the initiation of the meeting. Charlie and I both went up to the testimony room, but the people were just kind of coming in along and along and we just ended up if nobody was ready to testify, we just engaged in a question-and-answer session, and it worked really, really well, but it's not the way we would normally do it.

MR. BOYLES: Mr. Chairman, again I'm not on your committee. I'm all for finding ways to perfect the way we do interaction with the public. However, I hope just for the record we're not talking about going back to the old grandstanding days where we got a room full of folks and people were not so much commenting to the council as playing to the crowd. I want to be clear on that, that I'm not interested in going back that way.

MR. COLLINS: Each venue is different, also. What happened to Georgia, that's normal how it happens at Pooler, but certain venues where there is going to be four hours of solid, no-break testimony; so if you postpone the council member taking testimony until five, then you're going to be out of there at nine or later. Each one is different.

DR. CHEUVRONT: Thanks for mentioning that, Mike, because when we were at, for example, the New Bern one in late January, there was pretty much several hours of people talking; and it was, as Robert was saying, the crowd kept getting larger and larger and at one point there was well over a hundred people in the room and not all of them were there to speak.

The people who did speak were there to speak to the other people in the room and it was kind of grandstanding, rabble-rousing at times. There was still the feeling that it didn't matter what was said in the other room, they came and said what thought they were going to say, and at some point there was some – it wasn't clear to me that they understood necessarily what was said in some of the meeting rooms because of the way I think they twisted some of the language when they actually got up and made their testimony.

When I said twisted, I didn't mean that it was a willful thing; it was just a matter of - it was clear to me from the point of view that they were speaking from, they didn't understand the issue as the council was presenting it. I think anything we can do to help fix that kind of a problem would be really helpful.

MR. MAHOOD: I was going to give a suggestion to that, and that would be to ask Roy Crabtree not to close a major fishery the day before our hearing starts.

MR. HARRIS: Okay, any other comments. These are good comments and this is an important issue. It's one we've struggled with ever since I've been associated with the council, how to do public hearings and how to make them more effective. I think the way we've got it right now is pretty effective because it does – the people that take advantage of the opportunity do go into those other rooms, do get their questions answered. I think when they come in and give testimony, if they have done that, their testimony is usually more well thought out and thought through and it's more valuable to the council.

MR. WAUGH: I wouldn't read a lot into the reaction we got this time. I think Bob has touched on one item. The black sea bass closing in the middle of the hearings was certainly a big factor. That threw us off our presentations. We had to regroup and have one whole room set up just to deal with the fallout from that. Needless to say, people were a livid over that.

The other is it's just as we are having difficulty dealing with and comprehending the multitude of amendments we're dealing with, you can't expect the public – there is no structure you can provide them to get their minds around what is going on right now. It's too much to grasp. I think this was an aberration. Hopefully when we go out to scoping at the – well, we'll even know sooner because in April we're going out with two amendments, so we'll have a better read then. It doesn't seem like there are too many other fisheries that could close after this week, so maybe we won't have that as an issue.

MR. MAHOOD: Even though we had some people who were very upset, we had a lot of people who were very upset, the fishermen in general and overall, they make much better presentations than they used to in the past. They thought things out, they're trying to come up with solutions as opposed to just pointing at Duane Harris and saying, "You know, I bet you've never been out in a boat before in your life." I'm encouraged by that.

It's just what the council is having to do right now is there is just no leeway that you could even take what might be a good proposal if you had a little bit more wiggle room relative to the fishing mortalities. I felt really bad at these hearings and I talked to a lot of individual people who are very sincere. We're going to have major impacts on their lives. What can you say to them? I'd be mad if I was them. You can't blame people when you're impacting their lives that much. It was very depressing in parts.

MR. HARRIS: Any other business to come before the SOPPs Committee? Seeing none, we stand adjourned.

(Whereupon, the meeting was adjourned at 1:42 o'clock p.m., March 8, 2011.)

Certified By:	Date:
· -	

Transcribed By: Graham Transcriptions, Inc. April 2011

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council **2010 - 2011 Council Membership**

COUNCIL CHAIRMAN:

David M. Cupka

P.O. Box 12753 Charleston, SC 29422 843/795-8591 (hm) 843/870-5495 (cell) palmettobooks@bellsouth.net

COUNCIL VICE-CHAIRMAN

Dr. Brian Cheuvront

N.C. Division of Marine Fisheries P.O. Box 769 (3441 Arendell St.) Morehead City, NC 28557 252/726-7021 Ext. 8015 (ph) 252/726-6187 brian.cheuvront@ncdenr.gov

Robert H. Boyles, Jr.

S.C. Dept. of Natural Resources Marine Resources Division P.O. Box 12559 (217 Ft. Johnson Road) Charleston, SC 29422-2559 843/953-9304 (ph) 843/953-9159 (fax) boylesr@dnr.sc.gov

Tom Burgess

P.O. Box 33 Sneads Ferry, NC 28460 910/327-3528 tbburgess@embargmail.com

Dr. Roy Crabtree

Regional Administrator NOAA Fisheries, Southeast Region 263 13th Avenue South St. Petersburg, FL 33701 727/824-5301 (ph); 727/824-5320 (f) roy.crabtree@noaa.gov

Benjamin M. "Mac" Currin

801 Westwood Drive Raleigh, NC 27607 919/881-0049 (ph) mcurrin1@bellsouth.net

George J. Geiger

566 Ponoka Street Sebastian, FL 32958 772/388-3183 (ph) georgejgeiger@bellsouth.net

Charles Duane Harris

105 Demere Retreat Lane St. Simons Island, GA 31522 912/638-9430 (ph) seageorg@bellsouth.net

Ben Hartig

,9277 Sharon Street Hobe Sound, FL 33455 772/546-1541 (ph) bhartig@bellsouth.net

Doug Haymans

Coastal Resources Division GA Dept. of Natural Resources One Conservation Way, Suite 300 Brunswick, GA 31520-8687 912/264-7218 (ph); 912/262-2318 (f) Doug.Haymans@dnr.state.ga.us

Deirdre Warner-Kramer

Office of Marine Conservation OES/OMC 2201 C Street, N.W. Department of State, Room 5806 Washington, DC 20520 202/647-3228 (ph); 202/736-7350 (f) Warner-KramerDM@state.gov

LTJG Matthew Lam

U.S. Coast Guard Brickell Plaza Federal Building 909 S.E. First Avenue Room 876/ DRE Miami, FL 33131-3050 305/415-6768 (ph) 305/415-6791 (f) Matthew.R.Lam@uscq.mil

Dr. Wilson Laney

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
South Atlantic Fisheries Coordinator
P.O. Box 33683
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617
(110 Brooks Ave
237 David Clark Laboratories,
NCSU Campus
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617)
919/515-5019 (ph)
919/515-4415 (f)
Wilson_Laney@fws.gov

John V. O'Shea

Executive Director
Atlantic States Marine Fisheries
Commission
1444 Eye Street, N.W., 6th Floor
Washington, D.C. 20005
202/289-6400 (ph); 202/289-6051 (f)
voshea@asmfc.org

Charles Phillips

Phillips Seafood / Sapelo Sea Farms / 1418 Sapelo Avenue, N.E.
Townsend, GA 31331
912/832-3149 (ph); 912/832-6228 (f)
Ga_capt@yahoo.com

Mark Robson

Director, Division of Marine Fisheries Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 620 S. Meridian Street Tallahassee, FL 32399 850/487-0554 (ph); 850/487-4847(f) mark.robson@myfwc.com

Tom Swatzel

/P.O. Box 1311 Murrells Inlet, SC 29576 843/222-7456 (ph) tom@swatzel.com

JESSICA MCCAWLEY
BONNIE PONWITH
BOB GILL
LT. BRANDON FISCHER
JACK MCGOVERN
MONICA SMIT BRUNEUD

SHRIMP

Robert Boyles, Chair Roy Crabtree

David Cupka

Doug Haymans

Wilson Laney

Charlie Phillips

Staff contact:

Gregg Waugh / Kari MacLauchlin

SNAPPER GROUPER

Mac Currin, Chairman Mark Robson, Vice-Chair

Robert Boyles

Tom Burgess

Roy Crabtree

Brian Cheuvront

David Cupka

George Geiger

Duane Harris

Ben Hartig

Doug Haymans

Charlie Phillips

Tom Swatzel

Red Munden, Mid-Atlantic Council Staff contact: Myra Brouwer

SOPPs

- Duane Harris, Chair
- ✓ David Cupka, Vice-Chair
- ✓Brian Cheuvront
- ✓ George Geiger
- ✓ Doug Haymans

Staff contact: Bob Mahood

SPINY LOBSTER

Mark Robson, Chair

Roy Crabtree

George Geiger

Ben Hartig

Matthew Lam

Staff contact:

Gregg Waugh / Kari MacLauchlin

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council **Staff**

Executive Director

Robert K. Mahood robert.mahood@safmc.net

Deputy Executive Director

Gregg T. Waugh gregg.waugh@safmc.net

Public Information Officer

Kim Iverson kim.iverson@safmc.net

Assistant Public Information Officer

Andrea Grabman andrea.grabman@safmc.net

Senior Fishery Biologist

Roger Pugliese roger.pugliese@safmc.net

Staff Economist

Kathryn (Kate) Quigley kate.quigley@safmc.net

Science and Statistics Program Manager

John Carmichael john.carmichael@safmc.net

Coral Reef Scientist

Anna Martin anna.martin@safmc.net

Fishery Biologist

Mike Errigo mike.errigo@safmc.net

Fisheries Social Scientist

Kari MacLauchlin kari.maclauchlin@safmc.net

SEDAR Coordinators

Julie Neer - julie.neer@safmc.net Kari Fenske -- kari.fenske@safmc.net

Fishery Scientist

Myra Brouwer myra.brouwer@safmc.net

Administrative Officer

Mike Collins mike.collins@safmc.net

Financial Secretary

Debra Buscher deb.buscher@safmc.net

Admin. Secretary /Travel Coordinator

Cindy Chaya cindy.chaya@safmc.net

∕Purchasing/Adm. Assistant

Julie O'Dell julie.odell@safmc.net

SEDAR/ Staff Administrative Assistant

Rachael Silvas rachael.silvas@safmc.net

PLEASE SIGN IN

may be included in the minutes, we ask that you sign this sheet for the meeting shown below. So that we will have a record of your attendance at each meeting and so that your name

SOPPs COMMITTEE MEETING March 8, 2011 St. Simons Island, GA

		Hilly Bions	Ira Dreveusk few	Sean Miken NCFA	Swalm Justin 1854	NAME & ORGANIZATION
		850- 302- 7845	910-685-5705		386-239-0948	AREA CODE & PHONE NUMBER
		Tallohas see 12			32120-9351	P.O. BOX/STREET CITY, STATE & ZIP

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council 4055 Faber Place Drive, Suite 201 North Charleston, SC 29405 843-571-4366 or Toll Free 866/SAFMC-10